
 
 
 
OUR MISSION IS TO PROVIDE EXCEPTIONAL PUBLIC SERVICES THAT  

                                                 ENHANCE THE EXPERIENCE OF LIVING, WORKING AND VISITING ADA. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A Copy of the above information is available upon request M-F 8AM-5PM at the Ada Township Clerk’s Office, excluding Holidays 

If you would like to be on the Ada Township e-mail information list please inform the Clerk or e-mail the Clerk at jsmith@adatownshipmi.com.  Persons with 
special needs, as defined in the Americans with Disabilities Act, should contact the Ada Township Clerk or call the Michigan Relay Center 

TDD # 1-800-649-3777. 
 

                                       TENTATIVE AGENDA   
                                        ADA TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING                          

                                         MONDAY, JUNE 24, 2019 at 12:00 P.M. 
                                      ADA TOWNSHIP HALL 

                                     7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE 
 

              
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 A.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 B.   MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 C.   NOTE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT & ABSENT 

 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
III.          GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS  
 MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES & ACCEPT REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS UNDER CONSENT 
 AGENDA  

A. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES:  
 1.  TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES – JUNE 10, 2019 

               B.    RECEIVE AND FILE VARIOUS REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
                              1. ADA DDA MINUTES – 05/13/19  
  2. GVMC MINUTES – 05/07/19 
  3. PARK DIRECTOR’S REPORT – 06/13/19 
  4. ADA HISTORICAL SOCIETY MINUTES – 05/09/19 
  5. ADA PARKS, RECREATION AND LAND PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD FY 2018-2019  
                                  ANNUAL REPORT TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD – 04/03/19 
  6. ADA UTILITY SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENTS UPDATE REPORT – 06/03/19 
  7. FIRE DEPARTMENT ACTIVTY REPORT – 05/19 
       
IV.          APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 
 A.   TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS 
 B.   AVERILL MUSEUM ADDITION, CONTRACTOR PAY APPLICATION #8 - FINAL 
 
 V. PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
VI. BOARD COMMENT  
 
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. FIREWORKS DISPLAY PERMIT – 3050 PETTIS AVENUE 
B. TAX FORECLOSURE PROPERTY AT 2952 PETTIS AVENUE NE 
C. WATER AND SANITARY SEWER UTILITIES OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE  

  
IX. OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
X.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

mailto:jsmith@adatownshipmi.com


DRAFT 

ADA TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 
MINUTES 

June 10, 2019 

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Haga at noon.  Members present:  Supervisor Haga, Clerk Smith, 
Treasurer Moran, Trustee Jacobs.  Trustee Hurwitz arrived at 12:08 p.m.  Members absent:  Trustees McAleenan 
and Proos.  Also present:  Planning Director Ferro, Parks Director Fitzpatrick, DDA Coordinator Hilbrands, Fire 
Chief Murray, and approximately six community members.   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Moved by Jacobs, supported by Moran, to approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion carried. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 
Township Board Minutes - 05/13/19. 

Receive and File Various Reports/Communications 
1. Ada Historical Society Minutes - 4/11/19; 2. Kent County Sheriff’s Department 1st Quarter Service Report -
3/31/19; 3. Hope Network Services Report - 4/19; 4. Comcast Updates - 5/5/19 and 5/23/19; 5. Township Permit
Activity Report - 5/19; 6. GVMC Policy Committee Minutes - 3/20/19; 7. REGIS Refund Letter - 5/14/19; 8. Utility
Advisory Board Minutes - 4/18/19; 9. Ada Library - Bid Package Procurement Process, JLL - 5/28/19.
Moved by Moran, supported by Smith, to approve the Minutes and accept the Reports and Communications
under the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried.

APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 

ADA TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS 
Treasurer Moran presented the following Hand Checks: #101 $34,199.08; #205 $1,553.87; #214 $2,346.89; #248 
$70.99; #401 $550.00; #590 $5,270.51; #591 $1,201.25; #592 $688.96.  Total all Hand Checks: $45,881.55.  
Warrants: #101 $63,235.79; #205 $33,696.63; #208 $393.47; #211 $4,669.44; #213 $443.61; #214 $9,984.16; 
#401 $47,378.00; #590 $119,355.22; #591 $149,019.08; #592 $2,450.24; #701 $760.22.  Total all Warrants: 
$431,385.86.  Total All Check and Warrants: $477,267.41.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by Smith, to approve 
the Warrant Report for June 10, 2019, in the total amount of $477,267.41.  Roll Call:  Yes - Jacobs, Moran, 
Haga, Smith; No - 0; Absent – Hurwitz, McAleenan, Proos.  Motion carried. 

LEGACY PARK PAY APPLICATION 14 
Mike Oezer, Progressive AE, explained the request.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by Moran, to approve Pay 
Application #14 for Legacy Park, to Katerberg VerHage in the amount of $51,978.24.  Roll Call:  Yes - Jacobs, 
Smith, Haga, Moran; No - 0; Absent - Hurwitz, McAleenan, and Proos.  Motion carried. 

AVERILL MUSEUM ADDITION PAY APPLICATION 18/FINAL 
There was no one present for this request.  Moved by Smith, supported by Jacobs, to table action at this time. 
Motion carried. 

ADA/THORNAPPLE RIVER DR. INTERSECTION PAY APPLICATION 3/FINAL 
Josh DeYoung, Moore & Bruggink, explained this request.  Moved by Hurwitz, supported by Jacobs, to approve 
Pay Application 3 and final for the Ada/Thornapple River Drive Intersection to Kamminga and Roodvoets in 

III.A.1



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of June 10, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 

the amount of $10,256.00.  Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, Smith, Moran, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan, 
Proos.  Motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

BOARD COMMENT 

Treasurer Moran stated the first Beers at the Bridge is scheduled for June 21, and this year’s events are planned 
to be bigger and better. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

There was no Unfinished Business. 

NEW BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION R-061019-1 - CONSUMERS ENERGY STANDARD STREET LIGHTING CONTRACT - FORM 548 
Supervisor Haga explained this is a contract for LED lights.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by Hurwitz, to adopt 
Resolution R-061019-1, which is a contract with Consumers Energy for LED lights.  Roll Call:  Yes - Jacobs, 
Hurwitz, Haga, Smith, Moran; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan, Proos.  Resolution adopted.   

RESOLUTION R-061019-2 - CONSUMERS ENERGY AUTHORIZATION FOR CHANGE IN STANDARD 
LIGHTING CONTRACT - FORM 547 
Moved by Hurwitz, supported by Jacobs, to adopt Resolution R-061019-2, which is a standard lighting 
contract with Consumers Energy.  Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, Moran, Haga, Smith; No - 0; Absent - 
McAleenan, Proos.  Resolution adopted. 

RESOLUTION R-061019-3 - FOURTH OF JULY PARADE ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST 
Treasurer Moran explained the route is similar as before and noted that this year we will be having a parade but no 
celebration due to library construction.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by Hurwitz, to adopt Resolution R-
061019-3, which is a resolution for 4th of July road closure.  Roll Call:  Yes - Jacobs, Hurwitz, Smith, Haga, 
Moran; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan, Proos.  Resolution adopted. 

APPOINTMENT TO DDA CITIZENS COUNCIL 
Brian Hilbrands stated this request is to appoint Marcel Burgler to the DDA Citizens Council.  Moved by Hurwitz, 
supported by Jacobs, to appoint Marcel Burgler to the DDA Citizens Council.  Motion carried. 

PARKS DEPARTMENT VEHICLE PURCHASE REQUEST 
Parks Director Mark Fitzpatrick explained the Parks current truck has required maintenance and it would be more 
economical to purchase a new truck.  Haga noted that it was not in the budget but in the capital improvement plan 
for 2021.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by Hurwitz, to purchase a new vehicle as requested, in an amount 
not to exceed $33,753.70.  Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, Smith, Moran, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan, 
Proos.  Motion carried. 

AVERILL MUSEUM ADDITION PAY APPLICATION 18/FINAL 
Moved by Jacobs, supported by Moran, to remove the Averill Museum Addition Pay Application 18/Final 
from the table.  Motion carried.  Moved by Moran, supported by Jacobs, to postpone this item until the next 
board meeting.  Motion carried. 



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of June 10, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

Josh DeYoung, Moore & Bruggink, explained that Jordan Intercoastal was almost done with trail repairs.  There are 
still some water issues.  He plans to work on Tuesday, June 11, to crackseal a couple spots.  There is one spot to 
determine whether it is his responsibility or someone else’s. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:36 p.m. 

______________________________ ______________________ 
Jacqueline Smith  Date 
Ada Township Clerk 



ADA TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES OF THE MAY 13, 2019 MEETING 
ADA, MICHIGAN 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by Chairperson, Bowersox. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Terry Bowersox, George Haga, Bryan Harrison, Walt VanderWulp, 
Dawn Marie Coe, Ted Wright, Margaret Idema, Devin Norman, Justin Knapp 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
STAFF PRESENT: Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator, Kevin Moran, Ada Township Treasurer, Adina 
Winczewski, Administrative Assistant  
PUBLIC PRESENT: 1 Member 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was moved by Idema, seconded by Coe, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF APRIL 8 AND APRIL 8 SEMI-ANNUAL
INFORMATIONAL MEETING

It was moved by Haga, seconded by Harrison, to approve the minutes of the two April 8th meetings as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 

IV. APPROVAL OF PAYABLES
a. SANISWEEP 4/10/19 INVOCE, STREET SWEEPING SERVICES

Hilbrands stated this invoice is for street sweeping that took place after the snow melted.  Street sweeping 
is completed 2-3 times per year.   
It was moved my Norman, seconded by Harrison, to approve the 4/20/19 invoice as presented.  Motion 
passed unanimously.  

V. APPROVAL OF RFP FOR STRIPING OF ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET PUBLIC
PARKING

Norman, Wright and Idema inquired about deterioration of the stripes over time.  Haga stated the stripes 
deteriorated last time because of environmental issues and the type of paint that was used.  VanderWulp 
suggested contacting the Kent County Road Commission and finding out what kind of paint they use for 
center-line striping. 

It was moved by Norman, seconded by Haga, to approve the Request for Proposal for striping of on-street 
and off-street public parking subject to separating the bill to the different departments for whom they are 
responsible for.  Motion passed unanimously.   

III.B.1



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the May 13, 2019 Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 

VI. REVIEW AND COMMENT ON ADA DRIVE SNOWMELT ESTIMATE

Hilbrands presented a basic estimate prepared by the Township Engineers for installing a snowmelt 
system on Ada Drive.  The total cost of the project would be $400,000 which would include the brick 
work already planned.  Hilbrands asked the Board if they would like to continue pursuing the snowmelt 
system or only complete the $100,000 brick work that was budgeted for this year.  

VanderWulp stated he would like to know the lifespan of the snowmelt system.  He inquired how much is 
being spent currently on sidewalk snow removal.  Hilbrands stated the DDA had $17,000 budgeted this 
year, however, it was for the entire village and not just Ada Drive.  VanderWulp stated that it would take 
quite a few years to pay back but in the long run, from a safety standpoint, snowmelt is the way to go.   

Norman inquired about the efficiency of bricks over concrete for snowmelt systems.  Haga stated we do 
not know the efficiency part yet.  The Township Engineer will need to talk to the contractor and find that 
out. 

Haga stated another thing to think about is where the boilers for these systems would be placed.  
Hilbrands stated a boiler would need to be placed on each side of the street.  They would need to talk to 
the businesses affected and investigate further. 

After further discussion, the Board agreed that more information is needed. 

It was moved by Norman, seconded by Harrison, to postpone a majority of the brickwork on Ada drive 
until more details are presented on a village sidewalk snowmelt system for the entire Village.  Motion 
passed unanimously.  

VII. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

a. Status of Riverfront Park Construction
Hilbrands presented final renderings of the amphitheater.  Construction should begin this
summer.  A park dedication naming event is scheduled for May 23, 2019.

b. Community Center/Library Building Update
Hilbrands reviewed renderings and final project budget update for the community
center/library as presented in the board packets.  These renderings and changes go to the
Township Board at tonight’s board meeting for approval.  The largest change is the removal
of the performance area on the first floor.  That area is now being viewed as an “add
alternate”.  That area has been taken out until additional funding is found to fund that
additional space.

VanderWulp stated he thought the community space in the library was the main reason for
this project.

Hilbrands stated the building as-is has a budget of $12 million and we still need $1.2 million.
The performance area on the first floor is still on the table if we can acquire funds.

Idema stated she feels that expectations from people who have already donated to this project
is that they want to see a community center.  This does not have a lot of space devoted to
community except for one room on the second floor.

Norman stated we need to remember that this project started out as a community center first
and the library idea came along later.



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the May 13, 2019 Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 

Harrison asked Haga if similar thoughts are being expressed within the Township Board.   
Haga stated this item is on the agenda for tonight’s Township Board meeting and the thoughts 
expressed from the DDA will be shared.   

Harrison stated that moving the location of the building and changing the design of the 
building added to the cost of the project which contributed in the elimination of the  
community space. 

Idema asked what the courtyard could be used for and expressed concern of only being able  
to use it a few months out of the year due to Michigan weather.  Hilbrands stated that there 
could be seating in the courtyard and opportunities for programming in the summer months.  
Haga stated community events could take place in the courtyard.  

Norman stated the courtyard is a nice design feature but is it taking away from one of the 
initial motivators for building this community center/library? 

Harrison noted that the performance area does not have adequate storage space.  There needs 
to be enough space to store tables and chairs.   

Norman noted that Cascade is currently talking about either spending money or raising 
money to add on to their community center because they see a demand for a larger space for 
community functions. 

VanderWulp stated that we ultimately need a community space bigger than what is being 
proposed.   

Wright asked if there have been any discussions during the design process regarding 
Cascade’s need to increase their community space?  Haga stated this is the first he has heard 
of Cascade increasing their community space.      

Harrison stated that a lot of the meeting summaries the DDA receives, notes the presence of 
KDL in the planning sessions.  Other than particular Township officials, it seems KDL  
is driving the design elements of this project, which is a well-designed library.  

Norman stated that it should be known that the DDA is very concerned that the community 
center is not an integral part of the project.  The community space is at least as  
important as everything else in the building.  The community space was one of the main  
reasons for going down this path a few years ago. 

VanderWulp and Norman expressed concerns for “fundraising burnout,” stating that if the 
community center is not built into the project from the start, it may never happen.   

Wright asked who, from the DDA, sits with KDL when making decisions.  Hilbrands  
stated Haga, Bowersox and Harrison are on the larger building committee but they have not 
met for some time.  Hilbrands stated that Supervisor Haga and Planning Director, Ferro,  
are in a lot of smaller meetings as well. 

Harrison stated he has not been involved in any meetings that concluded that the community 
center should be an add-on.   

Wright asked if there would be times when the entire library could be used for community 
events.  Haga stated that is a possibility.     



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the May 13, 2019 Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 

c. 2019 Ada Classic Criterium
Hilbrands stated Ada hosted this bicycle race 8-10 years ago.  It is returning June 15th

between 11:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M.  The Township Board approved the road closures at their
last board meeting.

VanderWulp asked why the DDA has not been informed of this race prior to today.
Hilbrands stated this event came up fairly recently.  It was mistakenly not included in the last
DDA board packet.

VanderWulp stated events like these are very disruptive to downtown businesses such as his,
especially those without ingress/egress access.  He stated he does not have a problem with
bike racing but feels it should not shut down the village.  He asked how many people are
expected to come to this event. Hilbrands stated he does not know.

Haga stated this event brings in a large crowd and that is what we want to see in the village,
much like Beers at the Bridge.  The bike race organizers presented to the Township Board
and covered public concerns regarding access and traffic control.  The Sheriff’s department
will be on-hand for assistance.

VanderWulp inquired about extra parking for overflow vehicles and suggested opening up
some of the grassy areas on Headley for parking.

Wright stated this is a great event that he enjoys to watch, however, it is important that the
organizers reach out to all the businesses.  They should communicate to the Ada Business
Association.  Harrison agreed, stating that perhaps the local businesses could be promoted in
the race promotions.

VanderWulp stated he truly feels this event should have gone through the DDA first because
it is within the DDA district.  Norman stated the race organizers went to the Township first
because the Township needs to approve the road closures.  To go to the DDA first, there
needs to be a process where a Township person tells the organizer to contact a DDA point
person to work out the details and then they go to the Township Board for approval.

VanderWulp left at 9:05 A.M.

Coe agreed, if an event is coming through the DDA district, the DDA should be made aware
of it from the start.

d. Beers at the Bridge Sponsorship Information

Hilbrands stated the Banner sponsorship has sold out with a limit of 20 sponsors.  There are 3
Grub sponsorships spoken for and he would like to get 1 more.  Gravel Bottom Brewery is
the title sponsor this year.

Coe asked if the Ada Business Association solicits business sponsorships for this event.
Hilbrands stated their executive director usually includes the sponsorship form in their email
communications.  Coe stated there is an ABA meeting this Thursday.  Hilbrands stated he
will remind the executive director to send the sponsorship form with the meeting information.

e. DDA Financial Report, 4/30/19

Hilbrands reviewed the financial report as presented in the board packets.  Noted was income
from the Farmers’ Market and early expenses for Beers at the Bridge.



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the May 13, 2019 Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 

VIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT

Idema stated she receives lots of inquiries from people wondering what types of businesses are
coming into the new buildings.  She hopes there will be retailers coming in for more shopping
opportunities.

Wright asked if the developers for the new buildings are considering parking when bringing in
new tenants.  Haga stated the Planning Commission reviews parking during the site plan review
process.

Norman asked if there is an update from the Kent County Road Commission regarding
Thornapple River Drive.  Haga stated they will be working on the road, from the bridge to
Cascade Road, but he does not have a date.

Norman asked who is responsible for the streetlights and stated that there are several lights that
are tipped, and, the light schedule is not consistent with all the lights.  Haga took note of
Norman’s comments.

Harrison thanked Haga and Hilbrands for representing the views expressed at today’s board
meeting.  Harrison thanked Hilbrands for his work and stated that he continues to be impressed
by how he handles the DDA’s issues.

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no public comments.

Meeting was adjourned at 9:20 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted: 

_____________________________________ 
Devin Norman, Secretary 

rs: aw 













Ada Township Parks & Recreation Department 

Park Director’s Report 

For June 13, 2019 

Submitted by Parks & Recreation Director Mark Fitzpatrick 

Updates on Administrative Items 

• Regarding staffing, we are at our full summer level now.  Katie VerHulst was hired as our summer

Intern and Mark Thomas was hired to help with tournaments and replace Mark Russell’s position.

We are reviewing the “Gate Keeper” position to accommodate better night safety and coordination of

Roselle Room rentals.  Fire Department staff are a part of the options under review.

• Coordination with the Kent County Parks expansion of Chief Hazy Cloud Park continues.  Once the

County closes on the properties, they will notify the Township regarding our PRLP fund contribution.

That is expected by the end of 2019.  Dan DeLooff was appointed the new Director of Kent County

Parks. We are coordinating with him on the site master plan for Chief Hazy Cloud Park.

• We are processing the purchase of a new park truck. Our current full-size pickup is worn out with

potential maintenance and repair costs exceeding its value.  At the June 10 Township Board meeting a

request to purchase a new truck through the Kent County purchasing Department was approved.

Purchase of amenities of a front plow, amber light and decals were also approved.  Total costs are not

to exceed $33,753.70.  This action will require an amendment to our budget and CIP.

• The lawn mowing and edging contract with Thornapple Inc. is to be amended to accommodate the new

Legacy Park for the rest of 2019.   The mowing and edging services are to go out for bids again in the fall.

• The space assessment for the park office and maintenance buildings is to be coordinate with

assessment of the Ada Township Hall.  The next step in this process is to coordinate a “request for

proposals” to hire a consultant to assist with this initiative.

• Review of recreation registration software is still underway.

Updates on Township Parks and Preserves 

Ada Township Park 

• The park has been very busy this spring.  It is great to see so many people enjoying it.

• The Pickleball and Tennis courts are getting daily use.  A recognition sign was posted on the

Pickleball courts saying: “Special Thanks to Jerry and Marcy Tubergen for their generous support of

these Pickle Ball Courts”.

• Shelter and Gazebo reservations are filled in for most of the summer weekends.

• Volunteers assisted with three stewardship workdays this spring.

• The remainder of work from the 2019 trail improvement project by Jordan Intercoastal is close to

completion. The punch list is expected to be completed by the end of June.

• One of the athletic fields off Grand River Drive became quite worn from youth soccer. We have

stopped use of it temporarily while lawn recovery initiatives are underway.

• The two parking lots off Grand River Drive will be re-striped this summer in coordination with the

DDA on other striping projects in the Village.  A bid opening was held May 30th with Shoreliners

Striping as the lowest bidder.  Schedules will be set soon.

• As part of the trail maintenance project this summer, we are including a trail connector from softball

field #2 over to the trail on Buttrick Drive and a revision to a couple parking spots near the entrance.

These are being coordinated with Moore & Bruggink.

• Other upcoming projects include crack fill in the basketball court and repairs to the parking lot gates.

III.B.3



Updates on Township Parks and Preserves cont. 

Leonard Field Park 

• As part of the parking lot striping project coordinated with the DDA, the lot at Leonard Field will be

restriped.   This is a follow up to the patch work completed by Jordan Intercoastal in 2018.

• Setting up a request for proposals to secure an architect to facilitate a Master Plan process for Leonard

Field Park will be worked on later this summer.

Roselle Park 

• The spring rains led to high water levels most of the spring limiting access to the non-paved trails and

occasional closing of the paved trails.   Sections of the north trails are still holding water.

• Volunteers assisted with several stewardship workdays in the park helping with the garden beds,

entryway landscaping and the playground.

• The number of rentals for the room in the Resource Building has increased substantially with our opening

it up to private groups.  As anticipated, this is primarily for use on weekends and evenings.  Evening

coverage is still a staffing challenge under review.   Alcohol request has come up a number of times and

will be under review by the Rules Committee.

• The project to improve the non-paved trails in the north section of the park with fill dirt and culverts has

gone out to bid and due on June 19.   Construction is to be completed by August 30, facilitated by OCBA.

• The paved trails in Roselle Park will be included in the trail maintenance project facilitated by Moore &

Bruggink this year. That project will focus on sealing of the cracks.  Bids are expected to go out in July.

Legacy Park – In Memory of Helen and Rich Devos 

• A dedication and ribbon cutting ceremony for the park was held on May 23rd.  Recognition was

given to the donors as well as an unveiling of the memorial sculpture to go in later this year.

• Construction work in the main section by Katerberg VerHage is close to completion. The lawn is

close to stabilizing and the vegetation along the bank is coming in fine.

• Construction for the new amphitheater and grounds around it will continue into the fall.

• Park staff are taking on more management and maintenance of the facility each week.  This is

requiring two services a day by park staff for general care and assistance by volunteers.

• Use by the public has increased significantly since the opening.

• Development of a park sign is incorporated in the Township-wide sign initiative.

Carl Creek Crossings Preserve 

• Volunteers assisted with three stewardship workdays this spring.

• The site is getting daily use by visitors.

• We held a guided wildflower walk there this spring. The flora was impressive.

Carl Creek Wetlands Preserve 

• Volunteers assisted with a stewardship workday this spring.  They reset a loop trail through the

section off Alta Dale and removed invasive plants.

• There are significant levels of the invasive plant Buckthorn on the site.  We will be contacting the

Kent Conservation District for an assessment on how to better manage it.

Grand River Natural Area 

• The 2018 trail improvement project was completed this spring by Jordan Intercoastal.  It was delayed

due to the DEQ process. The work included setting alternative paved trail routes around the areas that

were high erosion areas along the river bank.  This work has removed a long-term safety and erosion

issue.   It will take some time for the vegetation restoration to be completed.

• A section of the paved trail was not repaired with this project and will need temporary patched until

we can get it into another larger asphalt bid project.

• We will be re-assessing the site for invasive plants in the fall and future management needs.



Knapp Corners Preserve 

• The sign correction is still underway as it is incorporated into the Township-wide sign initiative.

• Park staff and our mowing contractor have been maintaining the site.

• A stewardship workday is to be set up yet to review the back part of the property.

Updates on the Bike Paths / Non-Motorized Trails 

• The remainder of work from the 2018 trail improvement project Jordan Intercoastal is close to

completion.  The punch list is expected to be done by the end of June.

• Moore & Bruggink is facilitating a new maintenance project on the trails for 2019 to include sealing

of the cracks throughout the system.  This is expected to go out to bid in July.

• The Trails Committee has been working on a schedule for the millage renewal.  They are also putting

together a framework for prioritizing future trail projects and projected costs.  The plan is to be

drafted soon so it may be promoted this summer.

Updates on Recreation Programs 

• Upcoming summer Community Programs include the 4th of July parade, car show and fireworks;

three Friday night Beers at the Bridge concerts; and the August in Ada Children’s Fair.

• Softball and Baseball programs have been under way since March. Youth leagues and tournaments

filled the spring, while the adult leagues and tournaments stared in May and are continuing through

the summer.   The rains had an impact, but Rob and his crew kept the programs going well.

• AYSO soccer was held again April through June at Ada Park with activities six days a week.   They

have a couple day events and a week-long soccer camp scheduled for this summer.

• ZigZag Ultimate Frisbee was held again this spring one night a week in Ada Park.  This program is

growing regionally and targets middle school and high school students.  It is scheduled for the

summer months and requested for the fall season as well.

• The Grand Rapids Triathlon was held June 9.  It was a little rainy which held back some spectators,

but everything went well for the participants.

• A spring adult program was held at Roselle Park on managing your property for invasive plants and a

wildflower walk was held at Carl Creek Crossings. A family-based program on local wildlife was

also held at Roselle Park.

• Several spring school programs were held at Roselle Park and one was held at Ada Park.  The Roselle

Park schools were funded in part through the GVSU Groundswell program we are partners with.

• Summer youth day and day camps camp programs start this week with a fishing day in Ada Park and

summer camp volunteer training.  Next week they move into a 3-days a week program schedule

alternating between ½ day programs and the 3-day camps.  The programs will be held at both Ada

Park and Roselle Park.

• We will again host the Forest Hills Girl Scout summer Day Camp program.  That will be at Ada Park

June 17-20.  Over 100 girls participate in that program.

• Our fall program planning is underway with information for the next Adaview newsletter due July 19.

• Planning for the year 2020 is also underway to facilitate an expanded program offering, community

partnerships, returning the 4th of July celebration in the Village and participation in the Grand River

Expedition.

Other Items 

• We facilitated the spring Ada-Cascade Clean-Up Day at the Forest Hill Central Middle School.  Over

950 vehicles went through the line and a number had to be turned away.   A request to use that site for

the fall has been submitted.   A meeting is being set to review logistics, costs and long terms site needs.

• The new Kent District Library in the Village of Ada has a ground breaking ceremony set for Tuesday,

June 18 at 3:30 p.m.  Construction will start early July with completion anticipated for late summer or

early fall 2020.



1 

Minutes of May 9, 2019 
Ada Historical Society 

Annual Membership Meeting 

Present:    Crosby, DeGood, Hoover, Moran, Sefton, Thompson, Veldkamp, 
Vierson, Wildes.  

Absent:     None 

Others Present:  M. Bolhuis - Historian, D. Bolhuis, Barbara Mieras, Township 
Supervisor George Haga.   Guests:  Tom Mulligan, Matt Michaels, Chris Czekai 
and Emily. 

1).  The meeting was called to order by President Veldkamp at 1:08 pm.  

2).  Approval of the Agenda.   M. Bolhuis related the May meeting should read 
Annual Membership Meeting on the agenda.  Thompson will make the change.   
Sefton would like to add under Any Other Business tours and insurance.  Vierson 
added a discussion of reprinting our first book.   With those changes the agenda 
was approved on motion by Hoover, supported by Mieras.  The motion carried. 

3).  The Minutes of April 11, 2019 were approved on motion by Vierson supported 
by Hoover.  The motion carried.   

Introduction of Guests:  Veldkamp related we have guests present today.  We 
have three temporary openings on the Board and he has asked if these people  
would be willing to serve until the September board meeting when we will hold 
election of officers.  Chris Czekai related he has lived in Ada for the past 15 years 
and worked at a third party logistics company.  He has a history major.    Tom 
Mulligan related he has lived in Ada since 2007 and currently lives in the new 
Riverpoint development.  He has volunteered with the Historical Society for the 
past two and a half years with putting the oral histories into a digital format.  He 
is the program manager for Community Rebuilders who provide housing support 
working with getting people off the street and into permanent housing.   Matt 
Michaels related he moved back to the area in 2011 from Seattle.  He is the 
owner of Gravel Bottom Brewery.   Each board member then introduced 
themselves.  Also present is Emily, our former intern.  She is now employed as an 
archivist at Michigan Tech University.  Hoover supported by Sefton moved to 
approve the temporary board members Chris Czekai, Tom Mulligan and Matt 
Michaels until the election of officers at the September board meeting.  The 
motion carried. 

III.B.4



2 
 

 
4). Committee Reports 
 

a. Capital Campaign Committee Report 
Barbara Mieras related we are over our goal of $700,000.  We are 
working with a small number of major donors.  Our motto is “onward”.  
A small donor event is being planned for July.  Moran related he did 
report last month that $722,251 has been pledged.   
   

b. Finance Committee.  Moran presented the financial reports and 
related the end of the fiscal year is April 30.  M. Bolhuis presented the 
donation report.  She related one book was sold this month.  The 
account total is $51,208.61 of which part will be spent on exhibit 
spaces.  Sefton supported by Crosby moved to approve the Profit & 
Loss May 2018 through April 2019, the Balance Sheet as of April 30, 
2019 and the Donation Report dated April 30, 2019.  The motion 
carried.  

 
c.  Display Committee.   Wildes related the railroad exhibit is almost final 

in terms of content and design.  It should be done within the next 
month.  

 
d.  Collections.   Wildes asked to accept the following:  buttons, cradle 

with pink blanket, bonnet and shoes; framed business receipts, oral 
history from Ada Congregational Church; and a slide show of the 
Pastor Gary Burdick years from Ada Congregational Church.  
Veldkamp supported by Mulligan moved to approve.  The motion 
carried.      

 

e. Facilities Committee.  Moran related the gardens and grounds look 
great.  The flag pole is up and the irrigation system is in.  Haga related 
Jack was just here to finish up with the lawn area with Katerburg for 
$3,900.  Veldkamp related the furnace people were here to do a six 
month check up.  Hoover related he charged some stuff at the hardware 
and that bill needs to be paid.  Veldkamp asked if the barn was going to 
be painted this year.  Moran responded he has a quote from last year.  
Hoover related the squirrels are getting in.  Veldkamp related we need 
gutter covers.  Haga related he will check on that.  Vierson agreed that 
covers need to be installed.     

 
f.  Programs and Education.   Vierson related several people met last 
Friday regarding the June 29 picnic event.  Activities will include tours,  
antique appraisals, hot dogs on the grill with Bernie, and games for kids.   



3 
 

The event is noon to 4:00 pm.  Crosby related they are asking volunteers to 
wear a white shirt and museum hat for the day.  The barn needs to be 
cleaned before the event.   
  
g.  Membership Committee.  The memberships are being processed.  

There are a nice amount of returns.  Two members have joined at 
higher membership levels.   

 
Tri-River report.  M. Bolhuis related the group met in Eaton Rapids at the       

GAR Memorial Hall and Museum on April 16.  The signs for the Spring Into 
the Past Museum tour worked well and can be used for several future 
years.  Eleven people visited the museum on Saturday and twenty-one on 
Sunday during the museum tour.  Sheryl is working on a September bus trip 
to Owosso and Durand where there is a steam train and Depot.  The 
annual luncheon will be July 23 at Outreach Christian Church in Lake 
Odessa.   The program will be Bart and Ellen DeJong speaking about their 
trip in a 1930 Lincoln from New York to San Francisco on Route 66 (the 
Lincoln Highway).  Tri-River will be holding their next meeting in Ada on 
May 21 at 10:00 am.   

      
h. Publicity Committee.  Wildes related the website information has been 

updated.  A second person is needed in the museum on Saturdays in 
June, July and August.   Please sign up.   

 
 5)  Old Business.   
a.  Nominating Committee.  Sefton reported the committee put together 
responsibilities of the committee.  Hoover asked if elections are held every 
two years.  Veldkamp responded yes.  Hoover thought the proposed 
staggered terms is a good idea.     
 
b.  Wildes related the By-Laws Revision Committee will be meeting May 16 
at 9:30 am.   
 
6)  New Business.     
 

a.  Tours.  Sefton related she has tours on the following dates:  May 
30 at 1:30 pm; May 31 from 9:30 to 11:00 am and June 4 at 7:00 
pm.  She needs docent help on those dates.   

 
b.  Insurance.  Sefton related her condo organization just saved 

$24,000 by switching insurance companies.  She inquired if we 
should check our current coverage with other companies.  A 
short discussion of directors’ and officers’ insurance ensued.  



4 
 

 

c. Wildes related Grand Valley is offering board training for non-
profit organizations including challenges, roles, legal duties and 
strategies.  The cost is $149 per person and will be held on 
August 15 from 4:30 pm to 8:30 pm.  Veldkamp, Sefton and 
Wildes expressed in attending.   

 

d. Reprinting the first history book.  Vierson asked how can we go 
about reprinting the book.  We have received lots of requests 
for the old book.  We need someone to follow up and make it 
their project.  Crosby volunteered to talk with Baker Book House 
about a reprint.  Veldkamp related preserving history is part of 
our mission.   

 

e. Appreciation.  Marilyn DeGood was given flowers as a thank 
you and appreciation for all the years of cleaning the museum.      

 
7)  Open Discussion.  None. 
 
8) Adjournment.  The meeting was adjourned at 2:29 pm.    

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Marilyn Thompson, Secretary  
   



May 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

46400 · Donations, Fundraisers & Events
46402 · Cash Donations

46466 · Cash Donations - Other 240.50

Total 46402 · Cash Donations 240.50

46430 · Miscellaneous Revenue 4.37
46500 · Fundraisers

46510 · Building Addition II Fundraiser 500.00

Total 46500 · Fundraisers 500.00

Total 46400 · Donations, Fundraisers & Events 744.87

47200 · Program Income
47230 · Personal Membership Dues

47231 · Senior (60+) 260.00
47232 · Individual 30.00
47233 · Family 250.00
47234 · Friend 350.00
47235 · Settler 800.00

Total 47230 · Personal Membership Dues 1,690.00

47250 · Corporate Membership
47251 · Business 100.00
47252 · Benefactor

47254 · Edward Bradfield 500.00
47255 · Rix Robinson 1,000.00

Total 47252 · Benefactor 1,500.00

Total 47250 · Corporate Membership 1,600.00

Total 47200 · Program Income 3,290.00

48000 · Retail Sales
48001 · Sales - Gift Shop 8.50
48002 · Sales - The Next 50 50.00

Total 48000 · Retail Sales 58.50

Total Income 4,093.37

2:58 PM Ada Historical Society
06/12/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis May 2019

Page 1



May 19

Expense
60900 · Operating Expenses

60906 · Marketing 96.78
60935 · Office Supplies 132.93
60945 · Internet 86.90
60961 · Gifts 27.53
60966 · Independent Contractor 1,666.67
60980 · Postage 110.00
60984 · Printing 95.40
60996 · Telephone 38.82

Total 60900 · Operating Expenses 2,255.03

60956 · Fundraising 171.70
60959 · Museum Expansion (Interior) 590.00

Total Expense 3,016.73

Net Ordinary Income 1,076.64

Net Income 1,076.64

2:58 PM Ada Historical Society
06/12/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis May 2019

Page 2



May 31, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
10000 · Checking Account 51,029.78
11000 · Savings Account - Building 64,299.30
12000 · Petty Cash 50.00

Total Checking/Savings 115,379.08

Accounts Receivable
11001 · Accounts Receivable 8,649.50

Total Accounts Receivable 8,649.50

Total Current Assets 124,028.58

TOTAL ASSETS 124,028.58

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

30000 · Opening Balance Equity 60,375.97
32000 · Unrestricted Net Assets 62,575.97
Net Income 1,076.64

Total Equity 124,028.58

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 124,028.58

3:12 PM Ada Historical Society
06/12/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2019

Page 1



ADA TOWNSHIP PARKS, RECREATION & LAND PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD 
FY 2018-19 ANNUAL REPORT TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD 

April 3, 2019 

Advisory Board Members: Betty Jo Crosby (Vice Chair), Randy Damstra, George Haga (Township 
Supervisor), Catherine Jacobs (Trustee representative), Paul LeBlanc (Trustee representative), Wayne 
Nowak, Elise Roe (Chairperson), Rick Steketee, Kraig Schmottlach, Mike Terwilliger, and Jeff 
VandenBerge.   

Member Changes: Paul LeBlanc resigned from his position as Township Board Trustee just before the 
December, 2018 meeting.  Judy Levick was welcomed onto the Advisory Board for a 4-year term 
beginning on January 7, 2019.  

Staff Reporting: Jim Ferro, Planning Director; Mark Fitzpatrick, Parks Director, Rob McCormick, 
Softball Coordinator.  

Meetings: 8 regularly scheduled meetings and 1 special meeting were held on the second Thursday of the 
month.  Note that 2 of the regularly scheduled meetings did not have a quorum.  No meetings were held 
in June, August or January.   

Grand River Water Trail Initiative 

After a presentation from Natalie Henley of WMEAC regarding the recreational, economic, 
conservation/environmental, and cultural benefits of water trails, the PRLP Advisory Board 
recommended that the Township Board support the Grand River Water Trail Initiative.  The Township 
Board unanimously adopted a resolution to support the Initiative on 06/11/18. 

Recreation Needs Assessment 

A Recreation Needs Assessment process was carried out in June through October, 2018, with a final 
report delivered by the consultants, Mainstreet Planning Company and RJM Design Group, in November, 
2018.  Community input was gathered from workshops and online comments. The Assessment provides 
Ada Township with recommendations for the development of new parks and trails, the addition of 
recreation amenities in existing Township parks, and a guide for planning future recreation programs and 
support services. It will also lend support when applying for grant funding. 

Standing Committees 

Going forward, the PRLP Advisory Board will have 3 standing committees with the following members: 
1. Trails (Non-Motorized Bike Paths) – Haga, Jacobs, Moran, Nowak and VandenBerge
2. Land Preservation and Stewardship – Crosby, Roe and Steketee
3. Recreation Programs, Services and Facilities - Levick, Schmottlach and Terwilliger

Temporary Sub-Committee 
1. Rules & Policies – Haga, Jacobs, Roe, Schmottlach, Terwilliger

The rules committee assisted with updating the facility use guidelines and fee structure for rentals at the 
Roselle Park building. 

III.B.5



Parks, Recreation & Land Preservation Advisory Board 
Annual Report to Township Board 
Page 2 of 3 

 
Riverfront Park 
 
Major components of the new Township park on the Thornapple River in the Village were completed in 
2018, including playground, restrooms, seating plaza, sidewalks, landscaping and river bank stabilization 
were completed in 2018. Remaining work to be completed in 2019 includes the amphitheater, irrigation, 
additional sidewalks and lawn establishment.  A formal ribbon cutting and naming event is scheduled for 
May 23, 2019. 
  
Knapp/Grand River Dr. “Gateway” Sign/Landscape Improvements 
 
Katerberg Verhage completed the Ada Township entry sign and landscaping improvements at the corner 
of Grand River Dr. and Knapp.  Consensus from the Advisory Board is that it looks nice but the Ada 
Township sign and logo are difficult to read.  Options for improving visibility of this sign are currently 
being reviewed.        
 
Roselle Park Improvements 
 
The Advisory Board recommended the Township apply for a MI DNR Trust Fund Grant to cover 50% of 
a development project at Roselle Park set for 2021. It focuses on the following Roselle Park 
improvements:  

1. Improvements to the south parking lot. 
2. A new picnic area with universal accessibility. 
3. A group picnic gazebo. 
4. Playground and stream access improvements. 

 
The grant application was submitted in March, 2019 to the Michigan DNR. A funding decision on the 
application by the Natural Resources Trust Fund Board is expected in December, 2019. 
 
A floodplain/wetland permit application was submitted to the Michigan DEQ for drainage and trail 
system improvements on the non-paved trails in the north section of the park. The work is to be 
completed in summer or early fall of 2019. 

 
Roselle Park Building Meeting Room Acoustics Improvements 
 
Installation of a spray-on acoustic finish to the room ceiling was completed in April, 2018. 
 
Non-Motorized Trails 
 
Repair of several sections of the Township’s trail network were completed. These included repairs to 
pavement, boardwalks and bridges.  Additional work was done on the paved trails in Ada Park and 
parking lot at Leonard Field Park. The project was left partially incomplete in 2018 with the remaining 
work, including re-location of a portion of the paved trail in the Grand River Nature Preserve, to be 
completed in early 2019.   
 
Capital Improvements Plan 
The Advisory Board provided input to the annual update of the Township’s 6-year Capital Improvements 
Plan. 
 
Ada Park Tennis and Pickle Ball Courts 
 
The new tennis and pickleball courts at Ada Township Park were completed in July, 2018. 
 
 
 

























































MEMORANDUM

Date: 6/14/19 

TO: Ada Township Board 
FROM: Jim Ferro, Planning Director 
RE: Tax Foreclosure Property at 2952 Pettis Ave. NE 

Ada Township has been notified by the Kent County Treasurer of the opportunity to purchase a 
.46 acre County-owned parcel at 2952 Pettis Ave. NE, for the amount of unpaid property taxes 
on the property, which is approximately $4,450. The property is 100 feet x 200 feet in 
dimensions, and is on the east side of Pettis Ave., between 3 Mile Rd. and 4 Mile Rd. 

The undeveloped property is “landlocked,” with no access to the public road. The property is 
gently sloped and wooded. It is not in proximity to any existing public or private preserved open 
space or parks. 

The property was reviewed for potential purchase for public park or open space use by the Parks, 
Recreation and Land Preservation Advisory Board. On June 13, the Advisory Board 
unanimously recommended that the property not be acquired for park or open space preservation 
purposes. 

The Township Board should consider whether the property should be acquired for any other 
public purposes, or whether to inform Kent County that the Township has no interest in 
acquiring the property. 

VIII. B.



May 24, 2019

±0 90 18045
ft

Viewer Map




	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE
	2952 Pettis Ave Property-Report from Committee-06-07-19-w attachments.pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	Memo to Township Board-06-14-19.pdf
	MEMORANDUM




